

Scuola di Design

Scuola di Ingegneria Industriale e dell'Informazione

Corso di laurea magistrale in Design&Engineering

Design for Sustainability tools: a critical overview and a "tool navigator" for researchers & designers

Supervisor:

PROF. CARLO VEZZOLI

Co-Supervisor:

DR. DONGFANG YANG

Thesis by:

DHANARAJ HARSHA PRIYADARSHAN

962472

Academic year 2021/22

Acknowledgment

I would like to express my wholehearted thanks to my Supervisor, Professor. Carlo Vezzoli. Under his guidance I was able to complete my internship and develop this thesis, confronting new challenges and reaching the finish line despite the short period. Thank you very much for your kindness, helpfulness and for encouraging me to face new issues with curiosity.

I express my sincere gratitude to my Co-supervisor, Dr. Dongfang Yang. From the internship until thesis finishing period, she taught me what to do at each and every point and always helped me to rectify errors immediately. I was able to finish with no difficulty because of her smooth guidance and motivation.

I am thankful and blessed to have my parents, my brother and relatives for always believing in me and my abilities and always being there by my side during hard times even though I am far away from them. Thank you for making me so stubborn and determined.

A special thanks to my friend from India, Akshay who helped me on how to make a breakthrough with technical difficulties in this thesis by teaching and working with me during days and nights.

Finally, a big thanks to Politechnico Di Milano, Professors and friends for this wonderful experience and creating a positive and enjoyable atmosphere and also to gain advanced knowledge.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

LIST OF FIGURES

ABSTRACT/ASTRATTO	1
INTRODUCTION	2
LITERATURE REVIEW & DESK RESEARCH	3
TOOL ANALYSIS & DESCRIPTION	3
TOOLS CLASSIFICATION & FUNCTION	6
ANALYSIS	9
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR	10
CONCLUSION	22
BIBLIOGRAPHY	23

LIST OF FIGURES

ABSTRACT/ASTRATTO

The field of Design for sustainability has seen a progressive evolution and recognition, moving from environmentally sustainable resource selection, to product design for environmental sustainability, to system design for sustainability (environmental protection, social inclusion and economic prosperity) over the last three decades.

In this context, several tools have been developed to support designer in the development process. This study gives research of Design for sustainability tools with a systematic literature review of articles, books and desk research of institute's websites and publications.

For each tool, the following factors are explored: (a) the general characteristic of the tool including the aim, the contents, the procedure to use the tool, the tool availability and necessary resources, the form, the developer etc.; (b) tool functions and typology; and (c) the tool integration in a design process.

As a result, this study proposes a Design for sustainability tools map "navigator" to support and enables the designers to deeply understand, organize, identify and use the appropriate tool according to her/his specific need.

Keywords: Design for sustainability, design tools, tools map

Il campo del Design per la sostenibilità ha visto un'evoluzione e un riconoscimento progressivi, passando dalla selezione di risorse sostenibili dal punto di vista ambientale, alla progettazione di prodotti per la sostenibilità ambientale, fino alla progettazione di sistemi per la sostenibilità (protezione ambientale, inclusione sociale e prosperità economica) negli ultimi tre decenni.

In questo contesto, sono stati sviluppati diversi strumenti per supportare i progettisti nel processo di sviluppo. Questo studio fornisce una ricerca sugli strumenti di design per la sostenibilità con una revisione sistematica della letteratura su articoli, libri e ricerche a tavolino su siti web e pubblicazioni dell'istituto.

Per ogni strumento sono stati analizzati i seguenti fattori: (a) le caratteristiche generali dello strumento, tra cui l'obiettivo, i contenuti, la procedura di utilizzo dello strumento, la disponibilità dello strumento e le risorse necessarie, la forma, lo sviluppatore, ecc.

Di conseguenza, questo studio propone un "navigatore" della mappa degli strumenti del Design for sustainability per supportare e consentire ai progettisti di comprendere a fondo, organizzare, identificare e utilizzare lo strumento appropriato in base alle proprie esigenze specifiche.

Parole chiave: Design per la sostenibilità, strumenti di design, mappa degli strumenti.

INTRODUCTION

Design for sustainability (Dfs) is an integrated design approach that focusses on eliminating negative impacts on environment and create positive impact for the wellbeing of people. It had become a significant and major research area (Zhen et al., 2015). The current challenging phase of making path for sustainability concerns all sectors of society which includes Manufacturing and Engineering (Rosen and Kishawy, 2012). For the development of product and processes it is primarily focussed on usage of environmentally friendly materials and resource efficiency. This approach is also contemplated as life cycle design process where information about total life cycle phases of products and effect on environmental and living things are integrated. At present, Design for sustainability which are used in industries have rapidly grown, mainly focussing on purposes of new product and process development.

The alterations towards sustainability needs some shifts in the way we process, consume and more in common the way we live in (Vezzoli et al. 2022). In the presence of innovation as a primary function, design plays a vital role in research and practices on sustainability. Research shows that, at the development of the design stage, nearly 80% of product's environmental impacts are analyzed. (Europen Commission 2020; Europen Commision et al.2012; Design council 2022; Charter and Tischner 2001). Especially, sustainable solutions are extended from role of Design (Vezzoli, Garcia and Kohtala 2021).

The history of DfS culture and practice has moved from individual products to systems of consumption and production, and from strictly environmental problems to a complex blend of socio-ethical, environmental, and economic issues over the last few decades. A large number of DfS tools have been proposed alongside the development of DfS (Vezzoli 2018; Ceschin and Gaziulusoy 2019; Elena Windolph, Schaltegger, and Herzig 2014). At present, facing the rapid growth of a large number of DfS tools present, users may be challenged with a high level of unreliability and lack of skills and capability to understand which tools are correct and how to use them for specific processes. This study aims to analyse the dfs tools and a navigator.

This brings us to the outline of this article. In the section 'Analyses', the paper describes the review of Dfs tools. The section "conclusion" presents a how tool navigator of DfS tools was made.

LITERATURE REVIEW & DESK RESEARCH

The selection of proclamations was performed according to several unified criterias:

- topic of interest (tools related to design for sustainability),
- type of proclamations (literature review, case study, original research);
- consecutive order (proclamations between 2012-2022).

The literature review it was done in Google scholar, Scopus, web of science and Polimi online library making use of keywords such as ' Design for sustainability' OR 'eco-design' OR 'design for environment' OR 'Life cycle design' OR 'sustainable product-service system design' OR 'circular economy' AND 'tool'.

There were 109 papers found after excluding duplicates from different databases. A first selection was made based on the content of abstracts to evaluate the relevance. After which, 58 publications were selected as the main targets of the review.

Corresponding to the literature review, desk research on DfS tools was conducted according to several unified criteria:

- Topic of interest,
- Institutions (academic institution, consultancy institution)
- Projects on DfS.

The desk research was performed utilizing keywords same to the literature review. When conducting the analysis, official websites and publications of institutions and projects served as the primary sources of information.

TOOL ANALYSIS & DESCRIPTION

The study analysed each tool in terms of:

- The aim/goals/function and content
- The detailed procedure for using the tool
- The integration in the typical system design method
- The expected outcomes from the tool
- The availability and necessary resources
- Developer(s)
- Sources of tool.

The aim of analysing how each tool can be integrated into the typical design process was to gain a better understanding of when, how and why each tool can be used. The typical system design method shown in figure 1 was used as a reference, connecting design for sustainability with the typical development processes and sub-processes for products, services and systems, adopted from (Vezzoli, Garcia, and Kohtala 2021; Vezzoli, Kohtala, and Srinivasan 2014; Vezzoli 2018).

The system design method is divided into five stages of product and/or product-service system design:

• Strategic analysis: Focuses on gathering information to understand the current context and transforming the information into insights to guide the exploration of potential promising solutions.

• Service strategic brief: Focuses on identifying innovative potential directions for the development of valuable solutions, using a systematic approach that considers/involves all stakeholders along the value production chain.

• Product and/or service concept design: Aims to create and select the most promising product and/or service concepts.

• Product and/or service detailed design: Focuses on developing the project's details to enable the implementation of the solution.

• Communication: Draws up documents to report on the sustainability characteristics of the designed solution.



FIGURE 1. THE PROCESSES AND SUB-PROCESSES OF THE TYPICAL SYSTEM DESIGN METHOD ADAPTED FROM MSDS (VEZZOLI, GARCIA, AND KOHTALA 2021; VEZZOLI, KOHTALA, AND SRINIVASAN 2014) AND MPDS (VEZZOLI 2018)

The proposed method for environmentally sustainable system design presents processes for both the Product-Service System level (based on the Method for System Design for Sustainability, MSDS1, (Vezzoli, Garcia, and Kohtala 2021; Vezzoli, Kohtala, and Srinivasan 2014)) and the product level (based on the Method for Product Design for Sustainability, MPDS2, (Vezzoli 2018)).

As shown in figure 1, the presented method combines processes to be implemented along the Product-Service System (PSS) and the product design to show the important goal as follows:

- Assist designers in analysing the context of intervention and identifying product
- PSS design priorities; aid in the orientation of most promising sustainable solutions
- Evaluate the potential improvements of new solutions in terms of environmental sustainability

Finally, **the method was used as a reference** because it has a customizable structure with processes and sub-processes that can be easily adapted to the specific needs of designers/companies/organisations as well as diverse design contexts and conditions. In other words, users can choose to complete the entire process and related sub-processes, or a portion of the process(es) based on the specific requirements of one project.

TOOLS CLASSIFICATION & FUNCTION

Т

Based on the total number of tools present, they were classified such as follows:

> Tools for environmental sustainability evaluation (Product & System)

Tools for environmental evaluation are the category of tools which are used to identify and reduce the impact on the environment of standard existing product or system, new product or system and during the development of a product or a system before the definition of design properties. From the figure 2 we see that environmental evaluation tools (products) are classified to qualitative and quantitative and in quantitative, it is further classified into all impact, complete & simplified LCA and mono impact evaluation.

In the fig3. the integration process in tools for environmental sustainability evaluation for product and systems is shown.







FIGURE 3 INTEGRATION PROCESS IN TOOLS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY EVALUATION FOR PRODUCT/SYSTEMS

Tools for environmental sustainability orientation (Product&System)

These categories of tools are responsible for developing ideas and generating solutions. From the figure 4 we see that orientation tools for environmental generation solution (Product) are further classified into Dedicated tools for specific environmental performance, product comphrehensive life cycle design tools, specific tools for certain type of product, sector and firms and descriptive, organize and recording tool and internal communication. For the systems, it is categorized into general tools, sector specific tools and internal communication tools. The tools mostly developed in the form of checklists with statements or questions related to some design strategies/guidelines to direct the analysis.

In the fig5. the integration process in tools for environmental sustainability orientation for product and systems is shown.



FIGURE 4 CLASSIFICATION OF ORIENTATION TOOLS FOR GENERATION OF ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE SOLUTIONS



FIGURE 5 INTEGRATION PROCESS IN TOOLS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY ORIENTATION FOR PRODUCT/SYSTEM

ANALYSIS

The main aim is to identify the total number of designs for sustainability tools and characterize according to the several category/sub categories. Desk research was carried out for identifying each and every tool and its appropriate role/function is characterized. A literature review (Design for sustainability tools- DongFang Yang) showed the function of the tool and every process included in it. From this research there were 120 tools discovered.

Out of these 120 tools some tools were provided for example on how it is used/ works. The most important criteria showed here is how the tools are categorized and sub categorized.

Most promising part is that the flow of work is shown and also the examples of tools provided will have a quick glimpse on how to use Dfs tool for those who are new to the field. This research had been a good starting point for the tool classification, its appropriate function and integration process. Since it has a larger number of tools, user needs select the tool his/her specific needs. Among these totals of 120 tools, mostly many of the tools were open access and widely used in academic and education purposes and some are for industrial purposes.

The positive aspect about the design for sustainability tools were the ones in which tools comes under certain processes which makes the user understand the flow of process and easier to check tools in that working process. Negative aspect is that it consists of variety of tools and some overlaps in other function which makes it a little confusing for the user to know which tool is the overlapping tool.

This research presented a manual mapping on tools coming under each and every process/sub process will have the user to consume more time to identify and use the time. So, in this research, advantage is that workflow is accurate which will have an easier understanding whereas disadvantages is that not all research tool are shown so the user knows only tool's function that are shown as example. Some tools cannot be used like given in example.

In order to rectify this, a new program, website, application should be developed so that the designer/ student/ researcher use it easy and quick. Based upon the research, ideas from the authors, a new website can be developed since website will have access to the particular domains.

So, this led to the development of a navigation program named "DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR" in which process, tools and its function were shown clearly and so the user will have easier understanding, identify and use it in a better way.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR

From the reference of Figure 1. The processes and sub-processes of the typical system design method adapted from MSDS (Vezzoli, Garcia, and Kohtala 2021; Vezzoli, Kohtala, and Srinivasan 2014) and MPDS (Vezzoli 2018) a new layout is made for the **DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR** in which it helps the designers to identify, organize and use the tools according to his/her specific needs.

This tool navigator is designed for organization, identification and selection of tools that comes under appropriate design stages or processes. This process is done in the website LENS LAB POLIMI (<u>https://www.lenslab.polimi.it/</u>) under learning resources – tools.

Lens Lab is a research laboratory active in the design department, Politecnico di Milano for 20 years coordinated by Prof. Carlo Vezzoli. The role of the Lens lab mainly focusses on Design and System innovation on sustainability and also to educate and research to contribute to sustainable development for environmental protection, social inclusion, and economic prosperity.

It focusses on critical research and study of Design for sustainability product, process, systems etc.



FIGURE 6 HOMEPAGE OF LENS LAB

1. Understanding the tools

- The various number of tools are classified in excel sheet with the list in a detailed format with their sources and definition about them.
- A word & excel documents of my own is created with the help of MAIN excel sheet so it can be easier to put them into the website
- Afterwards, careful characterization is made in which tools have URL SOURCES, PDF SOURCES, VIDEO LINKS and which one have NO SOURCES at all.
- Based on above information a user-friendly user interface for these tools for easy navigation across all the tools, which is made in upcoming steps.

2. Creation of intuitive UI

- A user friendly and most intuitive UI is created so that anyone can easily navigate through the tool so a manual design is made and implemented in the elementor software.
- This website is created in such a way that its easy for the designers or a user to identify and use appropriate tools for appropriate processes.

3. Layout and design

Under each category it shows the appropriate tools present in it and also demonstrates its processes, links to their particular website and if it's an open access or pay and use. This tool navigator is done with the use of WORDPRESS and elementor.

DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR

Click over typical process of Product or PSS design for sustainability to discover available tools



FIGURE 7 HOMEPAGE LAYOUT OF DXS TOOL NAVIGATOR

LCA or qualitative env. impact of reference product

(Product strategic analysis/design brief)

Quantitative all impact evaluation	Quantitative mono- impact evaluation	Qualitative
A SimaDro		
≙ GaBi		
EcoChain		
₽ OpenLCA		
EPD generator		
EarthShift Global		
OneClickLCA (software)		
≙ eToolLCD		

FIGURE 8 LAYOUT OF STAGE/ PROCESS TOOL PAGE

- From the figure 7, it is the main home page consisting of a layout in which all Processes are listed.
- Upon clicking any of the processes, it navigates to another page which will contain the tools which are classified according to the particular category or sub category.
- The processes are colour coded in which the user easily understands the name of the appropriate processes present
- A home icon is added in the process tool page so that the user can navigate back to the home page to make it easier for them to navigate around all tools present in the category or subcategory.

4. Developing the UI in Website

- After the Design part was done, it had to be developed in the Lens Lab website in an exact same way
- It is done by creation of blank page in wordpress and name it as "Tool Navigator" and was edited with a drag and drop page builder that was already being used in the website called "Elementor"
- Elementor is an easy to use drag & drop builder that helps in creating the design very precisely the way we want it with the help of basic HTML & CSS knowledge.



FIGURE 9 WORKING OF BUILDER

- For each and every process highlighted in blue the description is shown when navigated to the particular page as follows:
 - Strategic analysis: Focuses on gathering information to understand the current context and transforming the information into insights to guide the exploration of potential promising solutions.
 - Service strategic brief: Focuses on identifying innovative potential directions for the development of valuable solutions, using a systematic approach that considers/involves all stakeholders along the value production chain.
 - Product and/or service concept design: Aims to create and select the most promising product and/or service concepts.
 - Product and/or service detailed design: Focuses on developing the project's details to enable the implementation of the solution.
 - Communication: Draws up documents to report on the sustainability characteristics of the designed solution.
 - The tools that will come under specific processes and description of tool (Fig.16)
- From the figure 9, there are three parts divided: content, style and working area.

- In first and third columns multiple inner rows were added and gave them color coded dashed borders same as per own design.
- Then the buttons for navigation were added inside those inner rows as Categories & Sub-categories respectively.
- The styling to the buttons were given with different colors and paddings were inserted inside them.
- Following in the middle row the arrow icons was attached and positioned/aligned correctly to sit in the middle of each corresponding section as per position
- Finally, the bottom part was created where description of each category and different colour meant by.



FIGURE 10 MAIN PAGE WORKING PART FOR DXS TOOL NAVIGATION

5.Development of inner tool pages

- For the creation of inner pages, an Elementor element named "TABS" were used and all the tools and their link were inserted according to the corresponding tabs in HTML code.
- A basic Cascading style sheets were added for the improvement of style, colour and texture. (fig.11)

(Product strategic analysis/design brief)

Quantitative all impact evaluation	Quantitative mono- impact evaluation	Qualitative	
SimaPro			
aBaBi			
EcoChain			
CopenLCA			
EPD generator			
EarthShift Global			
OneClickLCA (software)			
≜ eToolLCD			

FIGURE 11 CASCADING SYSTEM STYLING OF STAGES AND PROCESS

LCA or qualitative env. impact of reference product

(Product strategic analysis/design brief)

Quantitative all impact evaluation	Quantitative mono- impact evaluation	Qualitative
ATCHing Carbo		
OneClickLCA (software)		
LDE mat light LC		
The LCA Calculator		
Addemat Materials Selection		
Adterial Input Per Service Unit (MIPS)-	(Tischner, 2001)	
Addression Circularity Indicator (MCI)		
BiomiMETRIC		

FIGURE 12 OPEN OR PAID ACCESS DEMONSTRATION

• Appropriate html code of particular's tool webpage is given in order to navigate to its particular website and in icoc command "fa-lock" or "fa unlock" is given to demonstrate whether it is a paid or open access.

FIGURE 13 HTML CODE PAGE FOR EDITING ICONS, LINKS & TEXTS

ICS toolkit

LCD Strategies: Priorities definition

Product strategic analysis/design brief

	LIFE	CYCLE DESIGN STRATE	SIES		
	QUALITATIVE ASS	SESSMENT EXISTING PR	RODUCT/SYSTEM		
	FUNCTIONAL	INIT & PRIORITIES/IM	PROVEMENTS		
		EC S BOARDS			
	LIFE CYCLE DESIG	N STRATEGIES PURSU	ING EVALUATION		
	SIMPLIFIED	NORMAL	DEEP	1	
		RADAR			
download the tool,					

FIGURE 14 NAVIGATION TO INFORMATION ABOUT THE TOOL WHEN CLICKED

- All tool pages consist of two main things: 1) Typical development stage and processes & 2) Their particular Tools
- After creating all the Inner tools pages, each tool page was linked to the main Tool navigator page buttons one by one.
- And for the Sub-category tools buttons the anchor links were added so that whenever user clicks on them, they are directly scrolled down to that part of the page without manually scrolling down to the Sub-category tool.
- When all was done, the Main tools navigator page was attached to the "TOOLS" page on the website with the help of the button that says "START NAVIGATION"

CONCLUSION

The desk research and tool classification led in depth analysis of an overview of DfS tools, categorised by level of innovation and function. This study is summarized and further considerations were kept in mind in order to implement this in new program the tools according to the structure. The overall structure of tools that were characterized manually according to the process led to creation of program names "DxS TOOL NAVIGATOR" to make it more easier understanding

Creation of the tool navigator had been challenging part since it is created in Wordpress/ Elementor. Primary task is to characterize the tools according to its function and categories which is the hard and time-consuming part and also providing the hyperlinks to their appropriate website had been a bit difficult. Then, the characterization of open access/ Paid access was easily classified. From the designed layout of the navigator, it is easy for designers to identify and use the appropriate tools for their particular processes.

https://www.lenslab.polimi.it/tool-navigator/

The above-mentioned link is the tool navigator created under LeNS lab – Learning resources – Tools where the detailed learning about system design for sustainability and product design for sustainability is provided.

For use of designer or in an industry, this will help to adopt a suitable tool according to their projects and sustainability development.

For academic use, this research attempts to discover all DfS tools that have been present until now, to provide an overview for researchers. As far as the tool navigator concerned its easier for them to understand tools which comes under each and every process.

For educational purposes, this overview of Dfs tools and the navigator provides students on to have a deeper learning of process, subprocess and the developed tools that are characterized under it.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Ben Moussa, Fatima Zahra, Fatima Ezzahra Essaber, Rachid Benmoussa, and Sébastien Dubois. 2019. "Enhancing Eco-Design Methods Using TRIZ Tools: The Case of ECOFAIRE." In New Opportunities for Innovation Breakthroughs for Developing Countries and Emerging Economies, edited by Rachid Benmoussa, Roland De Guio, Sébastien Dubois, and Sebastian Koziołek, 350–67. Cham: Springer International Publishing. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-32497-1_29

Bianco, Isabella, Francesca Thiébat, Corrado Carbonaro, Simonetta Pagliolico, Gian Andrea Blengini, and Elena Comino. 2021. "Life Cycle Assessment (LCA)-Based Tools for the Eco-Design of Wooden Furniture." Journal of Cleaner Production 324 (November): 129249. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2021.129249

Bovea, M.D, Pérez Belis, V., 2012. "A taxonomy of ecodesign tools for integrating environmental requirements into the product design process." https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2011.07.012

Byggeth, S., Elisabeth, H., 2005. "Handling trade-offs in ecodesign tools for sustainable product development and procurement" https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2005.03.024

Ceschin, Fabrizio, and Idil Gaziulusoy. 2016. "Evolution of Design for Sustainability: From Product Design to Design for System Innovations and Transitions." Design Studies 47 (November): 118–63. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.destud.2016.09.002

Chris Sherwin 2004 "Design and sustainability: A discussion paper based on personal experience and observations" https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s10970-006-0003-x#Bib1

Dongfang Yang 2022. "Design for Environmentally sustainable tools"

European Commission. 2020. Circular Economy Action Plan: For a Cleaner and More Competitive Europe. LU: Publications Office of the European Union. https://data.europa.eu/doi/10.2779/05068.

European Commission, Enterprise and Industry Directorate-General, European Commission, and Directorate-General for Energy. 2012. Ecodesign Your Future: How Ecodesign Can Help the Environment by Making Products Smarter. Brussels: European Commission.

Elena Windolph, Sarah, Stefan Schaltegger, and Christian Herzig. 2014 "Implementing Corporate Sustainability: What Drives the Application of Sustainability Management Tools in Germany?" https://doi.org/10.1108/SAMPJ-01-2014-0002

Garrath T Wilson and Tracy Bhamra 2020 "Design for sustainability – The Need for New Agenda" https://doi.org/10.3390/su12093615

https://econation.one/

https://www.sdfy.org/sustainable-design-tools

https://www.tetrapak.com/sustainability/planet/environmental-impact/a-value-chain-approach/life-cycle-assessment/lca-examples

https://sustainable-infrastructure-tools.org/about/

https://developer.mozilla.org/en-US/docs/Web/CSS#:~:text=Cascading%20Style%20Sheets%20(CSS)%20is,speech%2C%20or %20on%20other%20media

http://www.lens-europe.eu/

https://www.lenslab.polimi.it/

Jeremy Faludi, Steven Hoffenson, Sze Yin Kwok, Michael Saidani, Sophie I. Hallstedt, Cassandra Telenko and Victor Martinez. 2020 "A Research Roadmap for Sustainable Design Methods and Tools" http://bth.diva-portal.org/smash/get/diva2:1504265/FULLTEXT01.pdf

José Vicente, Rui Frazão, Fernando Moreira da Silva. 2011 "Ecodesign Tools: One basis to operationalize Sustainable Design"

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/289236511_Ecodesign_Tools_One_basis_to_op erationalize_Sustainable_Design/stats#fullTextFileContent

Komoto, H., and N. Mishima. 2013. "Life Cycle Simulation for Sustainable Product Service Systems." In Handbook of Sustainable Engineering, 633–52. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4020-8939-8_75

Marta Rossia, Michele Germania and Alessandra Zamagni. 2016 "Review of ecodesign methods and tools. Barriers and strategies for an effective implementation in industrial companies": https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2016.04.051

Manzini, Ezio. 2002. "Sustainable Solutions. New Business Ideas and New Ideas on Business," 14

Marco Marseglia.2017 "Design Process and Sustainability. Method and Tools" https://doi.org/10.1080/14606925.2017.1352711

Tracy Bhamra and Richardo J Hernandez.2021 "Thirty years of design for sustainability: an evolution of research, policy and practice": https://doi.org/10.1017/dsj.2021.2

Rosen, M.A., Kishawy, H.A., 2012. "Sustainable manufacturing and design: concepts, practices and needs". Sustainability 4, 154–174: https://doi.org/10.3390/su4020154

Richardo J Hernandez. 2019 "Sustainable product service system and circular economy": https://doi.org/10.3390/su11195383

Russo, D., C. Rizzi, and G. Montelisciani. 2014. "Inventive Guidelines for a TRIZ-Based Eco-Design Matrix." Journal of Cleaner Production 76 (August): 95–105. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2014.04.057. Shamraiz Ahemad, Kuan Yew Wong, Ming Lang Tseng and Wai Peng Wang. 2018 "Sustainable product design and development: A review of tools, applications and research prospects": https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resconrec.2018.01.020

Vezzoli Carlo. 2018. Design for Environmental Sustainability. 2nd ed. London: Springer London. http://link.springer.com/10.1007/978-1-4471-7364-9.

Vezzoli Carlo, Brenda Garcia, and Cindy Kohtala, eds. 2021. Designing Sustainability for All: The Design of Sustainable Product-Service Systems Applied to Distributed Economies. Lecture Notes in Mechanical Engineering. Springer International Publishing. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-66300-1

Vezzoli Carlo, Cindy Kohtala, and Amrit Srinivasan, eds. 2014. Product-Service System Design for Sustainability. Sheffield: Greenleaf Publishing.

Vezzoli Carlo, Luca Macrì, Berill Takacs, and Dongfang Yang. 2022. System Design for Sustainability in Practice. 1st ed. IT: Maggioli spa.

Vezzoli, 2003. "A new generation of designers: Perspectives for education and training in the field of sustainable design. Experiences and projects at the Politecnico di Milano University" Journal of Cleaner Production 11:1-9 DOI: 10.1016/S0959-6526(02)00057-4

Villard, A., A. Lelah, D. Brissaud, and M. Mantelli. 2012. "An Eco-Design Tool for Manufacturers of Semiconductor Technologies: Looking for Environmental Opportunities in the Design Phase." In 2012 IEEE International Symposium on Sustainable Systems and Technology (ISSST), 1–6. Boston, MA: IEEE. https://doi.org/10.1109/ISSST.2012.6228013

Vicky A Lofthouse. 2006 "Ecodesign tools for designers: Defining the requirements" Journal of Cleaner Production 14(15-16):1386-1395. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2005.11.013